
Public Participation 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any non-procedural matter listed on this agenda.  
Addresses shall not last longer than three minutes.  Committee members may then ask questions of the 
speaker.  No prior notice is required prior to the commencement of the meeting of a request to address the 
Committee. 

 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held at the The Guildhall 
on Monday, 14 June 2010 at 5:00 pm. 

D. Kennedy 
Chief Executive  

AGENDA 

 
 1. APOLOGIES    
   

 2. MINUTES    
   

 3. DEPUTATIONS / PUBLIC ADDRESSES    
   

 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
   

 5. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD 
BE CONSIDERED   

 

   

 6. VISION FOR THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE   

  Borough Solicitor to report.  

 

   

 7. COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY   

  Report of Borough Solicitor (copy herewith)  

 

   

 8. MONITORING REPORT   

  Report of Borough Solicitor (copy herewith)  

 

   

 9. STANDARDS FOR ENGLAND BULLETIN: FEBRUARY 2010   

  Report of Borough Solicitor (copy herewith)  

 

   

 10. THE GOVERNMENT'S PLANS FOR THE FUTURE OF 
STANDARDS FOR ENGLAND   

  Report of Borough Solicitor (copy herewith)  

 

   

 11. LOCAL ASSESSMENT CRITERIA   

  Report of Borough Solicitor (copy herewith)  

 

   

 12. STANDARDS FOR ENGLAND- LOCAL STANDARDS 2.0- THE 
PROPORTIONALITY UPGRADE   

  Report of Borough Solicitor (copy herewith)  

 

   

 13. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS    



Public Participation 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any non-procedural matter listed on this agenda.  
Addresses shall not last longer than three minutes.  Committee members may then ask questions of the 
speaker.  No prior notice is required prior to the commencement of the meeting of a request to address the 
Committee. 

  THE CHAIR TO MOVE: 
“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE 
REMAINDER OF THE MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT THERE 
IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF SUCH CATEGORIES 
OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY SECTION 100(1) OF 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS LISTED AGAINST SUCH 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE 
PARAGRAPH OF SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”  

   



 1 

     

 
Standards Committee 

 
 
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 
 
 
Report Title 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY 
 

 
 
Date of Meeting: 
 
Directorate: 
 
 

Ward(s) 

  
14th June 2010 
 
Borough Solicitor & Monitoring Officer 
 
All 
 

 
1.       Summary 
 
This report proposes that the Committee adopts a Communications Strategy to promote the 
work of the Council’s Standards Committee and the importance of ethical governance. The 
Strategy focuses on a National and Local Context and seeks to put forward innovative ways of 
taking the Committee’s agenda forward. The Strategy’s objectives have an internal and external 
perspective, looking to engage key political, managerial and commercial stakeholders to drive its 
agenda forward. 
 
 
2.       Recommendations 
 
The Committee is asked to note the contents of the report and to approve the draft 
Communications Strategy at Appendix 1. 
 
 
3.        Report Background 
 
3.1 Following the Committee’s “Away day”, on 1 September 2009 one of the key issues 

discussed was the desire by members of the Committee to raise the profile of the Ethical 
agenda both internally and externally. It was therefore agreed that the Committee would 
approve a Communications Strategy to engage internal and external stakeholders. The 
Monitoring Officer and the Chair of Standards have met with a number of Officers to 
discuss the best way forward and the attached proposed strategy identifies key actions to 
take the strategy forwards. 

 
3.2 The Committee are asked to approve the strategy. The delivery of the strategy will require 

resourcing, mainly through Officer time and dates and priorities in the action plan to 
deliver the strategy will reflect the available organisational resourcing.  

 
3.3 The Committee will be updated regularly on the progress of the strategy. 
 
 

Item No. 
 

Appendices: 1 

 

Agenda Item 7



 2 

 
4.        Implications (including financial implications) 
 
4.1      Resources and Risk 
 
It is likely that the Strategy will require resourcing through Communications. 
 
4.2      Legal 
 
None, other than are set out in the body of this report. 
 
 
4.3      Other Implications 
 
None 
 
 
5.        Background Papers  
 
None 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Report Author and Title: Nikolas Jacob, Solicitor on behalf of  

Francis Fernandes Borough Solicitor and Monitoring officer 
 

Telephone and Email: 837334 ffernandes@northampton.gov.uk 

 
 
 



 

 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The purpose of this Communications Strategy is to promote both within the Council and 
externally, the work of the Council’s Standards Committee and the importance of ethical 
governance.  It is important for the Council to send out a clear message about its stance 
on standards.  This increases public confidence in the Council, its Members and officers 
whilst ensuring that those involved in Council business know what is expected of them in 
terms of operating within the Council’s ethical framework.     
 
The key message that the Council intends to convey via this Communications Strategy, is 
that there is a robust ethical governance framework in place which aims to ensure that 
Members and officers operate to the highest possible standards of conduct.    
 
NATIONAL CONTEXT 
 
Nationally, there has been increased emphasis in recent years on making changes to the 
ethical cultures of public bodies to promote high standards and put in place greater 
transparency and accountability measures.  The maintenance of high standards in public 
life is crucial to the creation of public trust which is a pillar of public life.  Public trust is 
concerned with people’s perceptions of the honesty and integrity of those involved in the 
delivery of public services and people’s confidence and satisfaction with the outcomes of 
service delivery.   
 
The public places high expectations upon those in positions of public trust about the 
standards that they and their organisations should be meeting.  The Committee on 
Standards in Public Life has found that the Seven Principles of Public Life that it drew up in 
1995 (commonly referred to as the ‘Nolan Principles’) are largely successful in articulating 
what the public expects of the ethical framework within which those in public office work.   
 
The Nolan Principles are Selflessness; Integrity; Objectivity; Accountability; Openness; 
Honesty; and Leadership and are a statement of values ‘inherent in public service’.  The 
Committee has also found that the public has some additional wider concerns, for 
example, that those in public office have attributes such as financial prudence, 
competence and being in touch with what the general public thinks1.   
 
In a local government context it is vital that the standards expected by the public are met 
as this contributes to increased public confidence in local democracy.  An absence in trust 
in the relationship between the public and the providers of public services undermines the 
legitimacy of public office holders to act on the public’s behalf.  An absence of public trust 
and confidence also impacts on the extent to which the public engage with and use public 
services.   
                                                 
1 Survey of public attitudes towards conduct in public life 2008, prepared for the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
– Executive Summary 



 
 
The 2008 Survey of Public Attitudes Towards Conduct in Public Life2 found that only 45% 
of the public would generally trust local councillors to tell the truth and 35% would 
generally trust senior managers in local councils to tell the truth.  Local authorities together 
with other public bodies in the UK therefore face the constant challenge of bridging the gap 
between the values held by the public and their perception of official behaviour.   
 
 
 
LOCAL CONTEXT - NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL’S POSITION 
 
The Council is currently going through a period of positive change.  Since 2004 when the 
Council was rated as ‘Poor’ in the Comprehensive Performance Assessment, significant 
improvements have been made across all services resulting in the Audit Commission 
rating the Council as ‘Managing Adequately’ across all areas of the assessment in 2009.  
Further, the Council was shortlisted for the 2009 LGC ‘Most Improved Council of the Year 
Award’.     
 
As part of the Council’s continuing path of improvement, the Standards Committee will be 
influential in reinforcing the clear cultural message in relation to ethical standards that has 
already been established and building upon the Council’s existing ethical framework.  The 
Corporate Plan 2010-2013 states that the Council will improve its governance 
arrangements including improving its approach to ethical governance for Members and 
officers.  This forms part of the Council’s wider priority of being an efficient, well-managed 
organisation that puts customers at the heart of what it does.  The Standards Committee 
has a responsibility to ensure that what the Council is doing to achieve these particular 
aims and how it is doing it, is communicated clearly to the public and Members and 
Officers.     
 
A key priority of the Standards Committee is the engagement of the political and 
managerial leadership of the Council in its agenda.  To this end, the Standards Committee 
had an away day in September 2009 where the Council’s Chief Executive delivered the 
key note address supported by contributions from the political group leaders.   
 
OBJECTIVES OF THE COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY 
 
In communicating internally: 
 
The Communications Strategy seeks to raise the profile of ethical standards within NBC by 
engaging key stakeholders including the political and managerial leadership of the Council 
which will enable the Standards Committee to effectively drive its agenda.   
 
In communicating externally: 
 
The Communications Strategy seeks to build trust and confidence in local democracy and 
enhance the reputation of the Council and its members through the engagement of key 
external stakeholders.    
 
KEY AREAS FOR THE STRATEGY 
 

                                                 
2 Survey of public attitudes towards conduct in public life 2008, prepared for the Committee on Standards in Public Life  



 
• Embedding standards further within the Council through informing, reminding and 

explaining standards and ethical issues to members and officers. 
• Increasing public trust and confidence in local democracy 
• Engaging Parishes in the Standards Committee’s agenda 
• Ensuring that ethics and standards are at the heart of all decision making 
• Raising awareness of the local assessment process  

 
TARGET AUDIENCES 
 
Internal 

o Officers 
o Members 
o Co-optees 

 
External 
 

o Parish Councils 
o The Public – Residents of Northampton Borough 
o Partner Agencies 
o The Media 
o Other key external stakeholders eg. community groups, business groups, tenderers 

and potential contractors, other public authorities and communities of interest eg. 
students, the elderly and youths.  (Please note this is not an exhaustive list).    

 
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION  
 
Some of the key channels of communication that will be used are: 
 

Internal 
  

o Intranet and e-mail – a means of making information available to all PC based staff 
or specific groups of staff at all times.   

o Induction and ongoing training – can cover standards and ethics issues as 
appropriate to a member of staff’s particular post 

o Notice Boards – there are a number of notice boards in the Council’s buildings that 
can be used as a method of communication.  However, this can be expensive and 
information becomes quickly out of date.   

o Meetings – information can be distributed through the usual management 
channels.    

 
External 

 
o Website – the Council’s website is a means of communicating with all members of 

the public who choose to access it.   
o Local Press – the Council issues press releases about important events or 

information that it wants to communicate through the press.   
o Local Radio – local radio can provide discussion forums or interview opportunities 

to communicate important messages.    
o Notice Boards – there are a number of notice boards in parts of the Council’s 

buildings accessible by the public that can be used as a method of communication.  
However, this can be expensive and information becomes quickly out of date. 



 
o Presentations – can be used to reach certain groups of the public directly 
o Leaflets and articles in newsletters – can be used to reach certain groups of 

people who the Council does not routinely communicate with electronically or who 
are not internet users.   

o Social Networking – Internet sites such as Facebook, Twitter & Linked In can be 
used as routes to direct internet users to the Council’s website and could be used 
for blogging, for example.  However, as these types of communications have to be 
monitored very regularly, it may be necessary to ensure the communications travel 
one way only.     

 
SUMMARY 
 
The Standards Committee must communicate proactively and effectively to promote high 
standards and public trust and confidence in local democracy.  The ability of a standards 
committee to do this is viewed by Standards for England as a measure of high 
performance.  The Standards Committee also has a role in communicating the Council’s 
stance on standards issues internally to all members and officers to ensure that Council 
business is conducted within a robust ethical framework.   
 
     



 

FF/Const/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards/Communications Strategy 

 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY – ACTION PLAN 
 
INTERNAL 
 
Message 
 

Method Distribution Dates 

 
 
 

Members 
 

o Specific Standards Committee web pages on the 
intranet. 

 
o Governance & Standards Newsletter (intranet & e-

mail distribution) including articles contributed by 
the Standards Committee Chair promoting the role 
of the Standards Committee.  /  Include a 
Governance and Standards section in existing 
bulletin that is sent to all staff and Members by e-
mail.    

  
o Induction Training covering the Council’s ethical 

framework.   
 

o Ongoing training including e-learning 
modules/DVD.  

 

  



 

FF/Const/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards/Communications Strategy 

o Three monthly e-mail reminders to members about 
Register of Interests and Register of Gifts and 
Hospitality. 

 
o At Standards Committee meetings, consideration 

of a real life case study of standards issues from 
another authority to enable members to discuss 
what can be learnt from the situation and applied at 
Northampton Borough Council. 

 
o Reviewing the channels of public access to 

information on the Members’ Register of Interests. 
 

o Standards Quiz conducted periodically to promote 
awareness of the Council’s ethical framework and 
identify obvious gaps in knowledge.  (All Members 
to be included, not just Members of the Standards 
Committee). 

 
o Standards Committee Chair to meet with the 

political group leaders to raise the profile of 
standards and the ethical agenda. 

 
o Chair or other member of the Standards 

Committee to address full Council to communicate 
ethical issues. 

 
o Standards Committee Annual Report. 
 

Officers 
 

o Specific Standards Committee web pages on the 



 

FF/Const/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards/Communications Strategy 

intranet. 
 

o Governance & Standards Newsletter (intranet & e-
mail distribution) including articles contributed by 
the Standards Committee Chair promoting the role 
of Standards Committee. / Include a Governance 
and Standards section in existing bulletin that is 
sent to all staff and Members by e-mail.   

 
o Induction training covering the Council’s ethical 

framework appropriate to the officer’s position and 
seniority.  

 
o Away days and ongoing training. 

 
 
o Cover the Standards Committee’s work in team 

meetings to raise awareness. 
 
o Chief Executive covering ethical issues, role of 

Standards Committee etc. at Management Board. 
 

o Internal promotion of the whistleblowing procedure. 
 

o Appointment of lead officers to act as governance 
champions to promote high standards and advise 
on issues such as contract procedure rules, gifts 
and hospitality and whistleblowing. 

 
o Standards Quiz conducted periodically to promote 

awareness of the Council’s ethical framework and 
identify obvious gaps in knowledge. 



 

FF/Const/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards/Communications Strategy 

 
o Place advert detailing the process for making 

complaints against councillors on employee 
payslips. 

 
o Standards Committee Annual Report. 

 
 
 
EXTERNAL 
 
 
Message 
 

Method Distribution Dates 

 External stakeholders including the general public 
 
o Specific Standards Committee web pages on the 

internet. 
 
o Posters in parts of Council buildings open to the 

public eg. the One Stop Shop briefly outlining the 
functions of the Standards Committee. 

 
o Press releases/interview with members of the 

Standards Committee in local newspapers. 
 

o Letters and notices to all local Citizens’ Advice 
Bureaus to raise awareness of the local 
assessment process. 

 
o Articles in newsletters sent to residents’ 

associations and local community groups or 

  



 

FF/Const/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards/Communications Strategy 

Governance and Standards newsletter to be sent 
to these groups with any other correspondence. 

 
o Standards Committee Chair or Monitoring Officer 

to give short presentations at Neighbourhood 
Partnership meetings or the new Neighbourhood 
Management meetings when in place about the 
role of the Standards Committee.  (This is a way of 
reaching the general public and Parish Councillors 
who also attend these meetings).   

 
o Engaging with local youth to raise awareness eg. 

art competition open to local young people to 
produce a poster to raise awareness of the 
Standards Committee. 

 
o Engaging with local youth to raise awareness 

through creating links with the University of 
Northampton Eg. talks by the Monitoring Officer or 
the Standards Committee Chair to law students on 
ethical governance in local authorities.  Or, 
university art department asked if it will produce 
posters that could be displayed in all Council 
buildings about the Standards Committee. 

 
o Putting a Standards Committee bulletin in the One 

Stop Shop.   
 

o Creation of a paper leaflet on making a complaint 
about a councillor for people who do not routinely 
have access to electronic communications. 

 



 

FF/Const/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards/Communications Strategy 

o Council hosting a Standards Conference for local 
Monitoring Officers and Members of Standards 
Committees to share experiences. 

 
 

o Creation of a local online standards forum for local 
Monitoring Officers and Members of Standards 
Committees to share experiences. 

 
o Taking advantage of any local radio opportunities 

to take part in discussion forums or interviews 
which would help communicate the Standards 
Committee’s messages. 

  
o Using Local Democracy Week (Autumn) as a 

platform to raise awareness of the work of the 
Standards Committee agenda.   

   
o Monitoring Officer and Independent Members of 

the Standards Committee going out to visit 
parishes to engage them in the ethical agenda. 

 
o Ensuring each Parish Council has a link on its 

website to the web pages of Northampton Borough 
Council’s which explain how to make a complaint 
about a councillor.   

   
o Carry out a survey of the understanding and 

attitude of each of the Parish Councils to the Model 
Code of Conduct for Members.  

 
o Governance and Standards newsletter to be sent 



 

FF/Const/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards/Communications Strategy 

to Parish Councillors (electronically).  
 

o Flyer publishing the complaints process to be sent 
to households with their Council tax bills. 

 
o Distribution of leaflets publicising the local 

assessment of complaints process to local post 
offices.   

 
o Development of a policy on dealing with the media 

in relation to standards complaints. 
 
o Consultation of key stakeholders on the Standards 

Committee’s Work Plan.  
 

o Distribution of flyers on ethics and standards and 
attendance of Chair of Standards or other 
Standards Committee Members at the Diversity 
Festival at University of Northampton (14th – 18th 
March 2011).   

 
o Have a stand on ethics and standards at the 

Northampton Borough Council’s Youth Forum 
Equality Celebration (which is linked to the Youth 
Parliament) to be held in February/March 2011 (to 
be confirmed).  Distribution of flyers and 
attendance of Chair of Standards or other 
Standards Committee Members.   

 
 
 

 



 1 

     

 
Standards Committee 

 
 
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 
 
Report Title Monitoring Report 

 
 
 
Date of Meeting: 
 
Directorate: 
 
 

Ward(s) 

  
14th June 2010 
 
Borough Solicitor & Monitoring Officer 
 
All 
 

 
1.         Summary 
 
This report informs members about the statistical analysis of the data supplied to Standards for 
England by the Monitoring Officer relating to the complaints made to Standards Committee 
about a Member. Data is submitted to Standards for England through quarterly and annual 
returns. The quarterly return relates to case activity and the profile of Standards Committees. 
The annual return relates to Standards Committees’ activities and the Committee’s 
arrangements for supporting ethical governance. 
 
 
2.        Recommendations 
 
 
The Committee is asked to note the report below. 
 
 
3.       Report Background 
 
 
3.1 Complaints about Councillors 
 
 During 2009/10 the Northampton Borough Council Standards Committee determined 

complaints about Councillors as follows: 
  

• Number of complainants = 16  
• Number of complaints made = 13  
• Number of assessment hearings = 5  
• Number of review hearings = 0  
• Number of reviews held on behalf of another authority = 0  
• Number of Councillors complained about in total within the complaints = 11 
• Multiple complaints = 0  

 
 
 

Item No. Appendices: None 

 

Agenda Item 8



 2 

3.2 Outcomes 
 

• No further action = 4   
• No reviews were requested. 
• Referred to the Monitoring Officer for other action = 1   
• Referred to Standards for England for investigation = 0  

 We are awaiting statistical evidence from Standards for England regarding the average 
number of complaints received by Borough Councils per quarter during 2009/10 on a 
“cases per Council” calculation. Standards for England confirmed their statistical 
analysis of this data would not be available until after the election.  This information is still 
not available. When available this information will tell us whether during 
the most recent twelve month period of local assessment Northampton Borough Council 
Standards Committee received more or less than the average number of complaints. 

3.3 Complaints Handling 

A total of 8 complaints have been registered between 1 April 2009 to 30 April 2010 (A 13 
month period has been used to make the data as up to date as possible).  

 Of these 8 cases, the Monitoring Officer met with the complainant in one case to discuss 
the complaint and the best way to structure it. The complainant has with drawn the 
submitted complaint and is expected to be reissuing a reconstituted complaint shortly. 

 
 The statistics also include one case, which was an appeal by the subject member against 

sanction made by a Hearing sub-Committee of the Committee in respect of complaints 
made by two complainants together making up two separate complaints. The appeal was 
rejected by the Adjudication Panel (S for E) towards the end of 2009 after it had 
considered the papers submitted by the subject member in support of his appeal request.  

 
 
4.        Implications (including financial implications) 
 
4.1      Resources and Risk 
 
None, other than appear in this report 
 
 
4.2      Legal 
 
None, other than appear in this report 
 
 
4.3      Other Implications 
 
None, other than appear in this report 
 
 
5. Background Papers  
 
Quarterly and Annual Return and associated documents 
 



 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Report Author and Title: Nikolas Jacob, solicitor on behalf of Francis Fernandes, 

Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
Telephone and Email: 837334 ffernandes@northampton.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 



 1 

     

 
Standards Committee 

 
 
AGENDA STATUS:  PUBLIC  
 
 
Report Title Standards Board Publications update – The Standards for England 

Bulletin 47 - February 2010  
 

 
 
Date of Meeting: 
 
Directorate: 
 
 

Ward(s) 

  
14th June 2010 
 
Borough Solicitor  
 
All 

 
1. Summary 
 
Issue 47 of the Standards Board’s “Bulletin” (the February 2010 issue) is attached and comment 
made on some of its points. 
 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
That members note the contents. 
 
 
3. Report Background 
 
The key points to note from the bulletin are:- 
 
3.1  The Annual Assembly of Standards Committees ’A place for standards’ is due to take place 

on 18 and 19 October 2010 at the ICC in Birmingham. The event will include sessions on 
sharing practice, developing high standards and building confidence in managing the local 
standards framework. 

 
3.2  Standards for England (SfE) has published its biannual ‘stakeholder tracker survey’ 

comprising a quantitative and a qualitative element assessing the levels of satisfaction of 
members and officers with the performance of SfE. Amongst the findings were: 

 
Ø Members and monitoring officers were very positive about the local standards 

framework and that it had bedded in well. 
Ø That the SfE’s monitoring officer helpline received positive feedback 
Ø Monitoring officers welcomed the development of peer and local/regional networks. 
Ø Several topics on which SfE could provide further guidance were identified such as 

more information on other standards committee practices, sanctions and 
proportionality, mediation, guidance specifically for parish councillors, and more 
advice on the overlap with Freedom of Information and Data Protection legislation. 

 
 A full copy of the report is available from the Borough Solicitor. 

Item No. 
 

Appendices: 1 

 

Agenda Item 9



 2 

 
3.3  The functions of the Adjudication Panel for England have been transferred to the First-tier 

Tribunal (Local Government Standards in England) and the panel abolished. The role of the 
First-tier Tribunal is to hear cases referred to it by an Ethical Standards Officer or a 
Standards Committee following and investigation. The Tribunal will also hear appeals by a 
subject member against the decision of a Standards Committee. The Tribunal 
arrangements include: 

 
Ø Power to summon witnesses and to require witnesses to produce documents relating 

to its hearings. 
Ø The power to conduct hearings either orally or in writing; subject to the consent of the 

parties. 
Ø Appeals from the Tribunal will be to an Upper Tribunal and not to the High Court as 

was the case with appeals from the Adjudication Panel. 
Ø The ability of an Ethical Standards Officer or Standards Committee to appeal the 

decision of the Tribunal. 
Ø Power to make an order for costs if the Tribunal considers that a party has acted 

unreasonably or a wasted costs order against any legal or other representative the 
Tribunal considers to have acted negligently, improperly or unreasonably in bringing, 
defending or conducting proceedings. 

 
3.4 SfE’s risk based approach is highlighted in the bulletin. The SfE have identified three types 

of risk they are concerned about: 
 

Ø Systemic risk – risk which could lead to widespread failing in the work of the 
framework or in standards across all authorities. 

Ø Sectoral risk – risk which could lead to a failing in standards in a number of similar 
authorities 

Ø Entity risk – risk of a serious standards failure affecting one of the authorities covered 
by the local standards framework. 

 
 The SfE by taking this approach are able to target its effort at those activities, situations or 

authorities that pose the biggest risk there by ensuring that the SfE provide Value For 
Money. The SfE will be consulting with the regulated community on this approach. 

 
3.5 The bulletin provides a reminder to members on the use of Social Networking such as 

blogging, Facebook and Twitter to carryout their political work. Members are reminded that: 
 

Ø Social networking can be used for political work 
Ø The Code does not exist to gag members or stop the expression of political views 
Ø The Code applies to the use of Social Networking for political work 
Ø If blogging etc as a private individual and not as a member do not claim or give the 

impression that you are acting in your role as a councillor or representing the Authority 
Ø Including links to official council web sites can give the impression that you are 

representing the council. 
Ø Whilst a verbal comment in the heat of the moment can be easily withdrawn, 

apologised for and forgotten an on-line comment is not as easily contained. 
 
3.6 The SfE’s website now includes guidance on: 
 

Ø Charitable Trustees and declerations of interest under the code 
Ø Freemasons and the Code 



 3 

Ø Independent members 
Ø Notification to parish and town councils concerning complaints about their members 

and the Standards 
Ø Role and appointment of parish and town council reps to the standards committee 
Ø Blogging a quick guide 

 
3.7  Consideration of the new Code by Parliament has been delayed with no date for 

consideration having been announced at present. 
 
 
4.     Implications (including financial implications) 
 
4.1   Resources and Risk 
 
There are no resource or risk implications associated with this report. 
 
4.2   Legal 
 
No specific points to mention at this time.  
 
4.3   Other Implications 
 
By keeping abreast of developments mentioned in the SfE’s bulletins members will find it easier 
to perform their tasks on the various sub-committees, which are involved in the determination of 
member-conduct complaints. 
 
5.     Background Papers  
 
SfE Bulletin 47 
 
 
 
 
Report Author and Title: Nikolas Jacob, Solicitor on behalf of  

Francis Fernandes, Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
 

Telephone and Email: 837334 ffernandes@northampton.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 























 1 

     

 
Standards Committee 

 
 
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 
 
Report Title The Government's plans for the future of Standards for England –

Letter from Chair Standards for England to Chair Standards 
Committee 1 June 2010 
 

 
 
Date of Meeting: 
 
Directorate: 
 
 

Ward(s) 

  
14th June 2010 
 
Borough Solicitor 
 
All 

 
1. Summary 
 
This report informs members about a letter recently received from the Chair of Standards for 
England confirming the new Government’s proposals for the Standards Board regime.  
 
 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
The Committee is asked to note the contents of the letter. 
 
 
3. Report Background 
 
The Chair of Standards Committee and the Borough Solicitor will attend the forthcoming 
Standards for England Conference.   The Chair and the Borough Solicitor will note its key 
messages for the ‘ethical governance’ agenda and will discuss any developments between 
members of this committee as to the impact on the work to be done by the Committee over the 
coming municipal year (2010-2011). 
 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 
4.1 Resources and Risk 
 
None at present. The framework continues to operate pending further announcements. 
 
 
4.2 Legal 
 
None at present. The framework continues to operate pending further announcements. 
 
 
 

Item No. 
 

Appendices: 1 

 

Agenda Item 10



 2 

 
4.3 Other Implications 
 
None, other than appear in the body of this report and the appendix 
 
5. Background Papers  
 
Readers who wish to find out more of the detail should read the Standards Committee (England) 
Regulations 2008, which can be accessed via the following link:- 
 
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/si/si2008/pdf/uksi_20081085_en.pdf 
 
 
 

 
 
Report Author and Title: Nikolas Jacob, solicitor on behalf of Francis Fernandes, 

Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
Telephone and Email: 837334 ffernandes@northampton.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 





FF/Constitution/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards 

1 
 

     

 
Standards Committee 

 
 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC  
 
 

Report Title LOCAL ASSESSMENT CRITERIA 
 

 
 
Date of Meeting: 
 
Directorate: 
 
 

Ward(s) 

  
14th June 2010 
 
Borough Solicitor & Monitoring Officer 
 
All 

 
 

1.      Summary 
 
This report proposes that the Committee adopts a formal set of Local Assessment Criteria, 
which set out the approach and criteria to be used by the Assessment Sub-Committee and the 
Review Sub-Committee in deciding whether to accept a complaint made against a subject 
member or to take no further action on it.  The Local Assessment Criteria also set out the 
specific criteria to be applied where the Assessment Sub-Committee or Review Sub-
Committee are considering referring a complaint to the Monitoring Officer for other action (that 
is, action other than investigation).   
  
2.     Recommendations 

 
The Committee is asked to note the contents of the report and to approve the draft Local 
Assessment Criteria at Appendix 1, which will be incorporated into the Committee’s Manual of 
Procedures for Complaints Against Members.   
 
3.      Report Background 

 
3.1 The Standards for England publication, “Local Standards Framework - Guide for 

Authorities” (the “Guidance”) provides local authorities with guidance on conducting the 
local assessment process.  Although the guidance does not have statutory effect, it 
reflects the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 and assists local 
authorities in implementing structures, procedures and processes which meet the 
statutory obligations of local authorities in relation to the assessment of complaints made 
against councillors. 

 
3.2 The Guidance suggests that each authority should adopt assessment criteria against 

which it assesses new complaints and decides what action, if any, to take.   
 

3.3 The Guidance sets out a number of suggested criteria for standards committees to apply.  
Currently, the Committee is applying these suggested criteria in the initial assessment of 
each new complaint.  However, it is suggested that the Standards for England criteria 
should be formally adopted by the Standards Committee together with some additional 
criteria.   

Item No. 
 

Appendices: 1 

 

Agenda Item 11



FF/Constitution/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards 

2 
 

 
3.4 Please see the draft Local Assessment Criteria at Appendix 1.  Paragraphs 1-6 are the 

criteria that Standards for England suggests that Assessment and Review Sub-
Committees use when deciding whether to accept a complaint made against a subject 
member or to take no further action on it.  Paragraphs 7-10 have been drafted to reflect 
general Standards for England guidance and local circumstances and priorities.  
Paragraphs A-I are the specific criteria that Standards for England suggests are applied 
when an Assessment or Review Sub-Committee is considering referring a complaint to 
the Monitoring Officer for other action (that is, action other than investigation).     

 
3.5 The draft Local Assessment Criteria aim to ensure fairness for both the complainant and 

the subject member, reflect the importance of ensuring that complainants are confident 
that complaints about a member are taken seriously and dealt with appropriately and 
consider the public interest and benefit in relation to the investigation of complaints. 

 
3.6 Formally adopting a set of Local Assessment Criteria will provide clarity and help to 

ensure consistency in the approach taken by members of the Standards Committee in the 
initial assessment of complaints against members.  Consequently, this will protect 
members of the Committee members from accusations of bias.  Further, the adoption and 
consistent use of a formal set of assessment criteria helps ensure that Northampton 
Borough Council is seen to be treating all complaints in a fair and balanced way.     

 
4.      Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1  Resources and Risk 

  
None 

  
4.2 Legal 
  
 As outlined in this report.    
 
4.3 Other Implications 
 
 None 

 
 
5.        Background Papers  
 

None 
 
Report Author and Title: Marianne McCarthy, Solicitor, on behalf of  

Francis Fernandes Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
Telephone and Email: 837334 ffernandes@northampton.gov.uk 

 
 
 



LOCAL ASSESSMENT CRITERIA 
 

 
The Assessment Sub-Committee and the Review Sub-Committee will adopt the approach 
and apply the criteria set out below in deciding whether to accept a complaint made 
against a subject member or to take no further action on it.    

 
 

1. Has the complainant submitted enough information to satisfy the Sub-
Committee that the complaint should be referred for investigation or other 
action? 

 
If the information provided is insufficient to make a decision as to whether the 
complaint should be referred for investigation or other action, the Sub-Committee 
should take no further action on the complaint unless or until further information is 
provided. 

 
2. Is the complaint about someone who is no longer a member of the Council, but 

is a member of another authority?   
 

If the answer is “yes”, the Sub-Committee may wish to [will] refer the complaint to 
the monitoring officer of that other authority. 

 
3. Has the complaint already been the subject of an investigation or other action 

relating to the Code of Conduct?  Similarly, has the complaint been the subject 
of an investigation by other regulatory authorities? 

 
If the answer is “yes”, the Sub-Committee will not refer the complaint for 
investigation or other action where there is nothing more to be gained by further 
action being taken. 
 

4. Is the complaint about something that is alleged to have happened so long ago 
that there would be little benefit in taking action now? 

 
5. Is the complaint too trivial to warrant further action? 
 
6. Does the complaint appear to be simply malicious, politically motivated or tit-

for-tat? 
 
7. Will the public interest be served by referring a complaint for investigation or 

other action? 
 

When considering the public interest, the Sub-Committee should consider:  
• the importance of ensuring that complaints about members are taken 

seriously and dealt with appropriately; and  
• the cost and member and officer time involved in the investigation of a 

complaint or taking other action in relation to the seriousness of the matter.     
 
8. Has the subject member offered an apology or to take other remedial action? 
 

In this case, the Sub-Committee may decide that no further action should be taken.  
 



9. Is the complaint anonymous? 
 

The Sub-Committee may only refer an anonymous complaint for investigation or 
some other action if it includes evidence indicating an exceptionally serious or 
significant matter.   

 
10. Has the complainant asked to withdraw their complaint before the Assessment 

Sub-Committee [or Review Sub-Committee where applicable] has made a 
decision on  whether to accept the complaint or take no further action on it? 

 
If the answer is “yes”, the Sub-Committee must ask the following questions: 
  

• Does the public interest in taking some action on the complaint 
outweigh the complainant’s desire to withdraw it? 
If the answer is “yes”, the Sub-Committee should consider proceeding with 
the assessment decision. 
 

• Is the complaint such that action can be taken on it, for example an 
investigation, without the complainant’s participation? 
If the answer is “yes”, the Sub-Committee should consider proceeding with 
the assessment decision. 
 

• Is there an identifiable underlying reason for the request to withdraw 
the complaint? For example, is there information to suggest that the 
complainant may have been pressured by the subject member or an 
associate of theirs to withdraw the complaint? 
If the answer is “yes”, the Sub-Committee should take advice from the 
Monitoring Officer on how to proceed with the assessment decision.   

 
 
The Assessment Sub-Committee and the Review Sub-Committee will adopt the approach 
and apply the criteria set out below when considering the possibility of referring a 
complaint made against a subject member to the Monitoring Officer for other action.   
 
    
A) Is there evidence of poor understanding of the Council’s Members’ Code of 

Conduct and/or the Council’s procedures? 
 
  If the answer is “yes”, this may be an indication that other action is appropriate. 
   
B) Have relationships within the Council broken down to such an extent that it has 

become very difficult to conduct the business of the Council?   
   
  If the answer is “yes”, this may be an indication that other action is appropriate. 
   
C) Does the complaint reveal a systemic problem rather than an individual one? 
 

If the answer is “yes”, this may be an indication that other action is appropriate. 
 
D) Does the complaint relate to:  
 



• the same particular breach of the Code by many members, indicating 
poor understanding of the Code and the Council’s procedures; 

 
• a general breakdown of relationships, including those between 

members and officers, as evidenced by a pattern of allegations of 
minor disrespect, harassment or bullying to such an extent that it 
becomes difficult to conduct the business of the Council; 

 
• misunderstanding of procedures or protocols; 

 
• misleading, unclear or misunderstood advice from officers; 
 
• lack of experience or training; 
 
• interpersonal conflict; 

 
• allegations and retaliatory allegations from the same members; 

 
• allegations about how formal meetings are conducted; or 

 
• allegations that may be symptomatic of governance problems within 

the Council, which are more significant than the allegations 
themselves? 

 
The Sub-Committee may consider that other action is appropriate in any of the 
above circumstances (though, this is not an exhaustive list).   

 
E) Would the allegation if proven, warrant any of the sanctions (apart from 

training) which would be available to the Standards Committee after a hearing?  
   
  Other action should be avoided in these circumstances.   
 
F) Is the Sub-Committee satisfied that other action could assist the proper 

functioning of the Council?   
 
G) Is the Sub-Committee satisfied that the complaint does not merit investigation? 
 
 Complaints should not be referred for other action when an investigation is merited, 

for example when an investigation would be in the public interest.  
 
H) Does the complaint fundamentally challenge the subject member’s honesty or 

integrity? 
 
  Other action should be avoided in these circumstances.   
 
I) Has the Sub-Committee consulted the Monitoring Officer about proposed other 

action?  
 
 The Sub-Committee must consult the Monitoring Officer before referring a 

complaint to them for other action.   



FF/Constitution/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards 

1 
 

     

 
Standards Committee 

 
 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC  
 
 

Report Title Standards for England – “Local Standards 2.0 – the proportionality 
upgrade?” 

 
 
Date of Meeting: 
 
Directorate: 
 
 

Ward(s) 

  
14th June 2010 
 
Borough Solicitor & Monitoring Officer 
 
All 

 
 

1.      Summary 
 

The Standards for England publication, “Local Standards 2.0 – the proportionality upgrade? A 
review of the local standards framework” (the “publication”) is attached to this report which 
summarises the publication’s key points.    

 
2.     Recommendations 

 
The Committee is asked to note the contents of the publication. 
 
3.      Report Background 

 
3.1 Standards for England has conducted a review of how the local standards framework has 

been working since its introduction in May 2008, when local authorities’ standards 
committees became responsible for receiving and assessing complaints about members 
and co-opted members.   

 
3.2 Standards for England states that the local standards framework is working, as it is 

“having a positive influence on behaviour and is generating confidence that bad behaviour 
will be dealt with”.  However, Standards for England also acknowledges that there are 
various issues arising from the local standards framework which raise questions about 
“the proportionality of the framework, its timeliness, cost and fairness to all, at all times”.  
Standards for England has therefore made a number of recommendations that it 
considers will address these difficulties and result in an improved framework. 

 
3.3 The key recommendations include the following:       

 
• More streamlined local assessment – arrangements to more easily dismiss trivial 

and less serious complaints, saving on time, money and burdensome process. 
 
• An enhanced role for independent chairs and vice chairs – in the assessment of 

complaints and the progress of investigations, with a counterbalancing extra power 

Item No. 
 

Appendices: 1 

 

Agenda Item 12



FF/Constitution/Legal Governance Group/MM/Documents/Standards 

2 
 

for the national regulator to investigate and if necessary remove poor performing or 
partisan chairs. 

 
• A new power for standards committees to be able to halt investigations if they have 

good reasons. 
 
• A commitment to greater transparency for members who are the subject of 

complaints. 
 
• The need to develop an approach which allows better understanding and 

management of costs associated with the operation of the framework. 
 

3.4  The Committee is referred to Appendix 1 of the publication (page 28), which lists all of 
Standards for England’s recommendations.  Chapter 8 of the publication (page 15) 
describes the findings of the review and links these findings with the resulting 
recommendations.   

 
3.5 The recommendations of Standards for England will go to the Department for 

Communities and Local Government for their consideration.  Most of the 
recommendations to the Government would, if accepted, require legislative or regulatory 
change.   

 
3.6  The purpose of this report is to ensure that the Committee is aware that Standards for 

England is proposing changes to the local standards framework.   
 
4.      Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1  Resources and Risk 

  
None 

  
4.2 Legal 
  
 None at present.   
 
4.3 Other Implications 
 
 None 

 
5.        Background Papers  
 
 None 
  
Report Author and Title: Marianne McCarthy, Solicitor, on behalf of  

Francis Fernandes Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
Telephone and Email: 837334 ffernandes@northampton.gov.uk 

 
 
 














































































	Agenda
	7 Communications Strategy
	Draft Standards Committee Communications STRATEGY
	Draft Standards Committee Communications Strategy ACTION PLAN

	8 Monitoring Report
	9 Standards for England Bulletin: February 2010
	Stds 14.6.10- SfE Bulletin 47 App

	10 The Government's Plans for the Future of Standards for England
	Letter Chair SBE 1.6.10

	11 Local Assessment Criteria
	Stds Cttee 14.6.10 Local Assess Criteria App

	12 Standards for England- Local Standards 2.0- The Proportionality Upgrade
	Stds Cttee- Proportionallity Upgrade App


